

CONSTITUTION OF THE ISRAELI CHAPTER OF ENGINEERS GEOSCIENTISTS MANITOBA

1. INTERPRETATION

Unless the context otherwise requires:

- (a) The name "Association" means Engineers Geoscientists Manitoba.
- (b) "Council" means the council of the Association.
- (c) "Members" means members of the Association.
- (d) "Chapter Members" means members of the Chapter

2. CHAPTER NAME

The name of the Chapter is "The Israeli Chapter of Engineers Geoscientists Manitoba".

3. CHAPTER FOCUS

The Chapter shall focus on the practice of engineering and geoscience by Members who have a connection to Israel, or have a Jewish ethnic background.

NOTE: the principle of inclusion is important. Notwithstanding each chapter will define a focus, anyone can join any chapter. Chapters must be inclusive of all and should not limit or restrict participation because of personal background or other focus.

4. PURPOSE

The purpose of the Chapter is to assist the Association in achieving its Ends as they relate to the Chapter Focus (Section 3).

To achieve this purpose, the Chapter shall endeavor to:

- (a) Encourage and assist in the registration and licensing of individuals who are qualified to become part of the Chapter Focus.
- (b) Support professional development within the Chapter Focus.
- (c) Increase Chapter Member engagement with the Association.

5. CONTINUANCE

Council may declare the Chapter inactive, suspend the operation of the Chapter or dissolve the Chapter for any of the following reasons:

- (a) Failure to achieve its Purpose (Section 4);
- (b) Failure of the Chapter to abide by the Chapter Constitution and Bylaws; and
- (c) Contravention of the Association Profession Act, or the Association Bylaws, or the Policies of the Association.

6. MEMBERSHIP

The criteria for Chapter Membership is as follows, Chapter Members shall be:

- a) members or intern members of the Association, and

b) fall within the Chapter Focus (Section 3).

The Chapter Executive shall be responsible for determining whether applicants fall within the Chapter Focus and maintaining the Roster of Chapter Members.

All who request membership within the Chapter and meet the criteria for Chapter Membership shall be added as Chapter Members. No fee shall be charged for Chapter Membership.

Only Chapter Members shall have voting privileges at Chapter meetings.

The Chapter may, by Chapter Bylaw, create categories for associate members, referred to as Associates within this Constitution. Associates are distinct from Chapter Members. Associates may fail to meet either or both of the criteria for Chapter Membership. The criteria for Associates shall be defined by the Chapter within their Bylaws.

Associates shall not have voting privileges and shall not be included in the membership total used to calculate Chapter funding from the Association (Section 14.(a) [Chapter Support]). Associates may attend meetings and/or volunteer on Chapter committees, if allowed to do so by the Chapter Bylaws.

7. MEETINGS

- (a) Meetings shall be called by the Chapter Executive
- (b) The Chapter shall hold no fewer than two meetings annually, one of which shall be the Chapter Annual General Meeting.
- (c) Quorum for the Chapter general meetings shall be the lesser of 50% of the Chapter Membership or ten Chapter Members.
- (d) The Chair, or the Vice Chair if the Chair is absent, shall preside at any General Meeting. If neither is present, the Chapter Members present shall choose one of their number to preside.
- (e) Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of all meetings unless otherwise specifically mentioned herein.

8. EXECUTIVE

- (a) The Executive of the Chapter shall consist of the following officers, which shall also constitute the Executive Committee:
 - Chair
 - Vice Chair
 - Past Chair
 - Administrator
 - Treasurer
 - A maximum of 3 additional Chapter Members.
- (b) The offices of Administrator and Treasurer may be combined
- (c) The Executive of the Chapter shall be elected at the Chapter Annual General Meeting in accordance with Section 10 [Nominations].

- (d) The terms of office for officers of the Executive, except for the Past Chair, shall be for two years with one-half of the Executive to be elected each year. The Past Chair term of office shall be one year. The terms of office shall begin immediately after the Chapter Annual General Meeting.
- (e) The Past-Chair shall be an ex officio executive committee member.

9. VOTING

- (a) Resolutions put to a vote at any meeting shall be decided by a show of hands. There shall be no right to vote, or to be represented, by proxy.
- (b) The Chair shall not vote, except to cast the deciding vote in the event of a tie.
- (c) Any matter may be voted on by email ballot, if initiated by the Executive. A vote so taken shall have the same force and effect as if the vote had been taken at the meeting. When using an email ballot, the ballot shall be provided to all Chapter Members at least 14 days in advance of the voting deadline.
- (d) Any resolution for Council adopted by the Chapter is not binding on Council, but shall be considered by Council.

10. NOMINATIONS

- (a) The Administrator of the Chapter shall collect a slate of nominees to fill the appropriate positions on Executive. Any Chapter Member may nominate one name for each of the available positions.
- (b) Written nominations from the Chapter Membership may be made at least 14 days prior to the Chapter Annual General Meeting. Each written nomination must be accompanied by the written consent of the nominee and the signatures of at least three other Chapter Members. Additional nominations may be made from the floor at the Chapter Annual General Meeting.
- (c) The office of any officer of the Executive shall be considered vacant upon:
 - i. receipt in writing of the officer's resignation by the Administrator.
 - ii. the officer ceasing to be a member of the Chapter (Section 6. [Membership]).
 - iii. the officer being absent for three consecutive meetings of the Executive.
- (d) The Executive shall fill a vacancy under 10(c) by appointing an officer from within the membership of the Chapter. Such an appointment shall be valid until the end of the term of the position vacated.

11. DUTIES OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Generally the duties of the Executive officers shall be as follows, except where the Executive Committee may assign otherwise.

- (a) Chair
 - i. The Chair shall, when in attendance, preside at meetings of the Chapter and of the Executive, shall be an ex-officio member of all committees and shall cause an annual report on the activities of the Chapter to be prepared for submission to the Chapter Annual General Meeting, to Council, and to the Annual General Meeting of the Association.

- ii. The Chair, or a designate, shall, at the invitation of Council, attend one meeting of the Council annually, to report on the activities of the Chapter.
 - iii. The Chair, or a designate, shall, attend the Annual General Meeting of the Association.
 - iv. The Chapter shall make Council aware of any items with regards to the Chapter Focus that may improve or hinder the professions' ability to self-regulate.
- (b) Vice-Chair
- i. The Vice-Chair shall assist the Chair in carrying out activities of the Executive and shall act as chair in the event of the absence of the Chair at meetings of the Chapter.
- (c) Past-Chair
- i. The Past-Chair shall assist the Chair as requested, and shall convene and chair the first Executive Meeting following the Chapter Annual General meeting.
- (d) Administrator
- i. The Administrator shall have charge of all papers and digital files, carry on all correspondence directed by the Executive, cause a record to be made of all Executive and General Meetings, keep such records, make such reports and perform such other duties as are incidental to that office and properly required by the Chapter and the Association.
 - ii. The Administrator shall maintain the Roster of Chapter Members. The roster shall list the names, email addresses, and professional status of each of the Chapter Members.
 - iii. The Administrator shall notify the Chapter Members of all Chapter meetings and assist the Chair in the preparation of the Annual Reports.
- (e) Treasurer
- i. The Treasurer shall account for all monies received and expended by the Chapter and shall maintain adequate records of the same.
 - ii. The Treasurer shall pay all accounts approved by the Executive and shall conduct all bank transactions.
 - iii. The Treasurer shall keep a regular account of all transactions for examination by the Executive, present a statement of Revenue and Expenditures to the Annual Meeting of the Chapter, and forward the statement to Council upon its acceptance by the Chapter.
- (f) Additional Roles
- i. The Executive may assign additional duties as required.

12. CHAPTER COMMITTEES

The Executive Committee may establish committees of the chapter, committee terms of reference, and shall appoint the chair and members to such committees.

13. MINUTES

The Executive shall cause minutes to be recorded of each Executive Committee Meeting and of each general meeting of the Chapter showing:

- (a) All appointments to offices made by the Executive.
- (b) The names of all officers and the number of Chapter Members present at each meeting.
- (c) All resolutions and proceedings of all meetings of the Chapter and of the Executive and of any Committee.

The Executive shall forward minutes of the Chapter Annual General Meeting to Council.

14. CHAPTER SUPPORT

- (a) The Association shall provide funding to the Chapter based upon a per capita amount for each Chapter Member. The Chapter Membership total shall be based on the annual submission to Council of the Roster of Chapter Members. The roster shall be submitted to the Council two months before the end of the Association's fiscal year (June 30th).
- (b) The Association shall cover the expenses of the Chapter chair or designate to attend Council meetings at Council's request, and to attend the Annual General Meeting of the Association as required by Section 11 [Duties of Executive Officers].
- (c) The Association shall cover the expenses of a Chapter Member and guest, designated by the Chapter Executive, to attend the Annual Association Gala event, if requested to by the Chapter
- (d) The Chapter may request funding from the Association for special events.
- (e) The President-Elect of the Association may be used by the Chapter as the point of contact on Council
- (f) The Association shall provide the Chapter a sub-domain of the Association's website.

15. FINANCES

- (a) The Executive shall cause true accounts to be kept of all monies received and expended by the Chapter and of the assets and liabilities of the Chapter.
- (b) The fiscal year of the Chapter shall coincide with the fiscal year of the Association (June 30th).
- (c) The Chapter shall submit a budget to the Council two months before the end of the Association's fiscal year (June 30th).
- (d) The Chapter shall submit a financial report for the preceding year to Council at the beginning of each fiscal year of the Association
- (e) The funds granted to the Chapter by the Association shall be used to assist in defraying the costs not readily recovered through normal fundraising.
- (f) All monies received by the Chapter shall be deposited in the name of the Chapter in a deposit-gathering institution which is a member of the Canadian Deposit Insurance Corporation.
- (g) All payments shall be made by cheque in the name of the Chapter and shall be signed by any two of:
 - i. the Treasurer;
 - ii. the Chair;
 - iii. the Administrator

16. CHAPTER CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS

- (a) The Chapter may propose amendments to this constitution which shall be subject to approval by Council
- (b) Amendments to the Chapter Constitution shall become effective when approved by Council.
- (c) The Chapter may create and amend Chapter Bylaws
- (d) The Chapter Bylaws shall not contravene the Engineering and Geoscience Professions Act, the Association Bylaws, or the Chapter Constitution.
- (e) Notice in writing of any meeting of the Chapter at which any amendments to the Chapter Bylaws or Constitution are to be considered shall be given to the Chapter Members at least 14 days before the date of that meeting.
- (f) Amendments to the Chapter Bylaws shall become effective when approved by the Chapter. The Chapter shall notify Council of any approved Bylaw changes.
- (g) Changes to the Constitution and Bylaws shall require the support of a simple majority (>50%) of total votes.

<u> Allan Silk, PEng, FEC </u>	<u> Leo Reznik, PEng </u>
President Engineers Geoscientists Manitoba	Chair The Israeli Chapter of Engineers Geoscientists Manitoba
Date: <u> September 15, 2022 </u>	Date: <u> August 26, 2022 </u>



BYLAWS OF THE ISRAELI CHAPTER OF ENGINEERS GEOSCIENTISTS MANITOBA

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Chapter is as laid out in the Chapter Constitution. The purpose of these Bylaws is to supplement and clarify, but not to supersede, the Constitution of the Chapter and the Bylaws of the Association, and those documents shall govern.

2. Events

The Chapter shall plan a minimum of two (2) events each year. All Chapter members and members at large may participate in chapter events. If events are held for public purposes, then there are no restrictions on participation.

3. Organization

4. Finances

- a. Meetings shall be self-financed.
- b. The Chapter may solicit contributions or support at the discretion of the Executive Committee.

Once approved by the membership in accordance with the Constitution and Bylaws dated [insert month, date, year], these bylaws shall govern.

As approved by the Chapter at the meeting on [insert month, date, year].

<hr/> <p>Leo Reznik, PEng Chair</p> <p>Date:</p> <hr/>	<hr/> <p>Alexander Vladimirsky, EIT Administrator</p> <p>Date:</p> <hr/>
--	--